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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

SEC FORM 17-A 

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141 

OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES 

1. For the fiscal year ended 	December 31, 2005 	  

2. SEC Identification Number 	28788 	 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-473-966 

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter .. .MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION... 

	Makati, Philippines 
	

6. 	 (SEC Use Only) 
Province, Country or other jurisdiction of 

	
Industry Classification Code: 

incorporation or organization 

7. 7823 Makati Avenue, Makati City  	 1210 	  
Address of principal office 	 Postal Code 

	(0632) 	896-02-21 	  
Issuer's telephone number, including area code 

N.A 	  
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report. 

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA 

Title of Each Class 
	

Number of Shares of Common Stock 
Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding 

common stock 
	

78,858,121 

11 Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange. 

Yes [ / ] 	No [ 

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein: 

Philippine Stock Exchange 	 common stock  

12. Check whether the issuer: 

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17 thereunder 
or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of The 
Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter 
period that the registrant was required to file such reports); 

Yes [ / ] 	 No [ ] 

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days. 

Yes [ ] 	 No [ ] 



13. State the aggregate market vekie of tile voting steck held by rion-affkates of the registrant. The 
aggregate market vakie shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock was sold, 
or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty (60) days 
prior to the dale of Wing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or entity is an affiliate 
cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the aggregate market value of 
tie common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the basis of assumptions 
reasonable under the circumstances, provided the assumptions ire set forth in this Form. (See 
definition of "affiliate" in "Annex Er). 

APPLiCABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN 
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION 0 ' PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS 

DURING+ THE PRECIDING FIVE YEAR: 

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 17 of 
the Code subcequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court or the 
Coinmisvon. 

Yes 1./. ] 	No f 

DART I SUStrilESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

item 1. Business 

Makati Finance Corporation is a fin,rice company incorporated last February 1968. In 
the re?d-2000, the CompLny formed a nevi ruanagornent team, which after thorough analysis of 
our operations decided to drop its less profitable product linos. MFC focused on three (3) main 
loan products, !lamely: (a) cons-gumer loans to medical professionals, (b) corporate loan via 
factoring of receivables and (t) secured business bans. These were offered domestically, 
hence there ware no 'foreign sales. iUso, .no government approval is needed for these products. 
The management continued to Implement Ctnet stttlng measures end imposed higher 
standards of credit evaluation. These decisions eventually led to the turnaround of the 
Company's operations in 20i)1. in 2004, the total loan portfolio contributed 89% to income, the 
rest raostiv came fire.rn sale of acquired a7,.-AraL; and recovery of written off receivable via 
payment of property. In ,kily 2005„ tiletucr ki financing was introduced to further diversify the 
Company's loaLl inirifollo and •,:prea,L1 the risk from 13;c1 factoring accounts and unsecurzd 
cons tImer 

The Coivpany's 	mess 	 ZSCITItilaq Ulf-Volvo: (a) sales and marketing; (b) 
evatuadon ar7id appecv.ii of 	ng.ipics.,itioris; arid (c) coiladron of loan accolints, with 19 
empayees r4rtne 	 'ill., subject to a Collectivo Bargaining Agreetrient. Clerical 
and ntalatitilance wci viec Ck 	f.rted. 'The following disorfission presents the various 
components of the CcilinpiiiWE. t.1.0.;:irtei.0ii operations: 

SaLls and kiertetinj 

Mei Company's sates Oad WilTketincffert is done by its Account Manacennat 
C:rowpMMG, The AMC le icpori&ue for i:jelinratInti new loon accounh;. It is also responsible 
for rrY,:rnitorn1 catirting ioan at=nurtile and ensuring that the•Er.o accounts are up to date with 
tier payivnits,. Aftit3 presently eropioya ato:;:sn of five Account Officers and an in-house 
c.oiletor iht includes the /10.i.- C; head. T.,ni.r Account (acorn am o tasked with generatinfi and 
menitorind thr3iL own pord'oal ofacc,'ounfs; k tirek as&gined C'DrViC0 arsar„ The service areas 
If at 	been identified by ttio,  Company include: Metro fia.yti.1.2, RiaI, LITuna, Cavitp and 
ilulacpro. 



CA around 3l[tO accred agents 

V.4e4-  103f1 	 tho r;einparty.I 	 ents include 
ind.ividuzzle, and scrtcdricrl 4tetlintittins, 	ritactic.;.":t erganizetions tittic.i distributors of 

rottlial and detital arptipirrient. tinder Its "(lienrt CA:it Clicitt program, the, Comp 	eitcowttiges 
clients to also not 	r".tferral anonts. 

The activities; currentty f.Teing cortdoeteet by the :e.i.ffr as plvt. of ft3 sritas and ci!.artetlng 
efor':.1 include; (a) ciiioc:t 	tk:4) adverthirracht itt, trade putilicatiorrs tied 'souvenir orocranis; 

(C g3N .ElL0 	 ft:” 	 (0e) eloor-toer mastieting; (f) attenditp%:e a! 
events; (ci) 	 W,0,9Fain; rirti 013 Mfcv•rai 

Lo.i Evaitn,ftic:o end AppreivJ; 

The Company it; avietri." !if the 'importance of Instituting au adequate evaittatott and 
procests for it.5 loan UppliCatiOn3„ Given the current economic environment, credit 

and the quality of Ittran accounts 	eem. 'very important considerations ftti-  finarica 

companies. 

App cat 	(necked b' the Company are cieered with the Credit Management 
At4::3thriltiGill of the Philippinoi.t, t"CMAP") and the: Credit investigation bureau, inc. ("Clef") to 
determine if there are arty negative findings o the applicants. The Account OirliCer then tiratts 
ht5 eva!tiation and recommendation on the appllcation. 

The Company's Credit Committee, Whi.01 enri5lefot of the Senior Managing Dirtictor, 
Comptroller arid the giotip heads, sturii,es the .Account Officer's evaluation and 
recommendation. it is the Credit Gonireirtee that iitakCS the final decision on the application. 

Once approved hy 	Crmlit Corninitt!:te, the Finance. RYA Accounting Group prepares 
the t.thectir, for die in 	for 	t to iiie Catthier tot' rele&iting. Clients are advised of the 
approvid nd the required dOCUrrielThi, prior.  to loan r.Jileases.. The clients post-dated checks 
zittl other re+ared loan documents are CoUbnlitC:d to the Casiler, LInd, it these are in order, the 
loan occcd 	ereleated to the client. The Ca 	toe: i provides the various departrnents 
and grout?owh the cop-opia12e. detUaoratF.T, for aCC.::Citint iirlfnitOthig and collec,tien. 

Loan Collection Pructiiss 

Account Offierits a 	iciterepia 	rtioniloring their loan accounts. They nnairitain a tick 

Ca'd and a computer hie of ,thcir approved 	glee. contain, among otiacT,s, the schedule of 

the loan amortization payments. bince c 	ready proyirje the Company with poet:dated 

aectlis for the rep men; nf 	loan, 	 OttICOM are regulariy advised of the status 
4 their accounts. They Ora iid On CAii?idi; the hvC COMMettld their monthly amortization 
payments and those that 	incurred r.tld:.:4-icri-c,:fteck payments. Clichtz with returned 
crizoks e 	 by their 	15ftic'etrs o ;effle the amount due es soon as 
pertsibie. T:-ie rope:orient tA 	 ,Ite.3 payment charges as wrli as 

ApAlcc2t 	u.:,.ayme.rot 	 i;ire eltasLifift by the Compaoly as 

pThj,t 	 accoutitzt 	 r11.21,te trait I30 14hys paztil due aro reclassified as 
acx;c4Int:i.TeseZGC:fM.Mt3 Way Le ct.i tcr," iz,°Tii action and/at the forecLyiute 

ei coilatetal.thoinstiblq) tral t:recOt F 	ceicn rxlicy, the. Company rnaintaihe it5 

noel of !provk:,..iog quality ,7it".;.o.'ice to its citi:"hts. 'The Cempernf normally evaluates the 
circurif."-nt'snet:,:t 	 (1, 1 a 



2.. 

As  paii of its  tin 	 ferer±':,F,,jd 00SP'..Weii 	;.*1.)pet,̀.1v;.; 

that V. 	mortgaged to !t 0) 	 : sVnc 	.;..o. 	i. 	r ..ore no oilier mortgages cr liens on 
triese properties exep noo i n 	the name GI; 	 proiiCteS have .stirsoug,:;ntly 
boon transferred, or currently in the process o; being r;;,..oktrert:en to the Company. Dit--..iveiopment of the 
MvWo propert; was finished t. ilieady and the 	 r,iropeity is currently being devolored to 

corgi 	a higher ceiling pco.The Compony vW es.ientirialtyi dispose or sell these prepers. Ti list 
et these properties is found in the towing 

i- 
1, Description ; 

Transferred 
fransfeired 

1 Lkt of Foreclosed Properties as cif December .til, i4tr.105 
i 	 Location 	 r Scinti 
1 Eitrgy. Baqiyao t".iuirriba i'riuevia Er.:0 	 553i-, 
1 Capitol Heimesite Subil., Big/. Coto, Liraena City (2 	5(31 
1;  lotti  
-ii,tervillig. Paranarpro City  i„ -- 

1_ Brgy. SiOril, San Miguel, BulaCan ) 	 ' . 
4u Fif7 

1 Drigy. Cotta, lyan-i, Luceina City f,3 petteeis,_1 	 4 	23,8.47 
1 Bo. De Ocarripo, Trece. Martires City Caiwite 	 I 	1.410 
1 1.1: Flocs, Teachers Village, Brgy. Gotta, lareena City (3 	900 
i lots) 
1  Vnuova Paranagye City 	 fc,-22 

Lot 29, Bioick 24. Lower Bieutan, Taggig 

Transferred 
Transferred 
in process 

Transferred 
In process 

r Transferred 
1 	138 	Transferred 

j Sun Valiey, Peranaque City 	 Li 	Transferred 
; rtesaric, 1,a Unicri 	 3,943 	Undet.  redemption 

1 TOTAL 	 _ 77,90 

.7.;. Legal Frocesdin9s 

Thera are no legal proceedings against Makati Finance Corporation (referred to as 'the 
Company), n:ricept collection and/or foreclosure cascs in the 	nial course of its operations. 

ftt'ATi.' 4. Siibinission of Mat iiiTS '0) a Vote of Eiciotnitti Holder's 

VIVM:Df.2tt 	votiria driciiiicins were stibizttitterri to tho Security' tretrfmrs in the 
fog rfti 	oi the year 

PART 	ATlONPLAr4o FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

ittm 	ricr 	.k.v;e3 Common Equity and litelatrd Stockholder fiflattars 

n 	.2J0, the DOD aird rtectdioicionti approvod, as part of the quasi-reorganization, 
the decTearita io the Company's autheri....Ad c2.I .titoch of im10009ç(05, vit a subscribed and 

capitai ttit.  rii45,149,730 to F99,949,040 	di a subscribed end paid-up capital of P 
2481,269. 7.111.:re, was no return 	capital, thus, the,  :::-.tirp!ius arising from the reduction in tne 

a31.01111th'qjtoP42,662,529 Wa'S credintti th additional 	caoltaL 

	

and 	 the iliii.irttisse n the 
stock frorr: 	 divided into '12,760000 common 

shits 	viAire t. tiQ :)w share. 



One 	 3„...nt',3„:5Z5 .-.:,inares to the 
agaiii:3,t filen cipeeits for futon...! silim:„. riptions 2TACILMitifIcy tC. P17,070,299, 

teeditlitg to aa additional paid-i 	pita ufP55,002,931 

tin thu name date, t1' i;,tethritiet; and Exchang,,, Common tSEC) approved the quasl- 

re..,..-ci,i;i11,, iza.ii)it 	iln)sc Oiled atio‘i'e,, 

ic1qf1.1p011 :such 	 tho additional paid-in capital amounting to P 
97,;(81,211 	IhA date was applied against the Company's defick as of July 31, 2000 

to P17,731,211. 

On December 11, 2001, the CiOD and Mockhoidefn approved the reduction ifi the 
Company's auihori.zed 	Ita tocb from P127,0ti0,000 to P100,000,000 and from par value of P 
10 per share to P1 tier share.. Oil MIKA Ii, 2002, the i30D mUStccitholders amended the 
propoaed reduction in the Coinpany"s authorized capital sterA from P127,000,000 to 
'0,000,000 and from par value of P10 per share to Pi pc 	The reduction in authorized 
enpitai stuck 	approved by thu GEC or iglny 9, 2002_ The reduction h par value resulted in 
the isetianee of 31,025,349 additinnal shares to el.ting shareholders. 

On to name late, Olio BUD nd shicitheidere decd steck divitts0116 in trio aggregate 
ie-tootot c.t P20,785,475 	favor o the stockt olders. of rer..o)rd a. of May 31, 2002, with any 

fac..:tierrTsislierei to 	pLid 	ceaMr. 

Also on March 11, 21,102, the SOD and stockholder:1 approved the offer of up to 
sharea from the Cornipany's uniedned coimnon stock through initial common patlic 

offering 	The appiicntion for the WO a the Company v, approved by the SEC and the 
PhBippine Ste.ck f.7.Achang (PSiii), on Civecnier irP:, 2,002 and Noven-ibir 79, 	respectivelr. 
The t:h.ii,,.coarty Vf.'„-ivt;fht d 	rheYS under the .3rnail 	Ms/Alum Eniicrotion l:.;ii7rd on danuasy 6, 
2003 Withan •:11t11* price of ffhP1,39 per share. andertititer ‘kas 	 Investrient 
Corporation. 

he cir;nh itthe mentor of eh &3 and caii.itai stne.h 	for tho yearP eittled 
iDceeinter Z I,2CC;ii, 2004 and 2003 MOW: 

2005 02 

tiuntiaca 	 irttr 

At;;Ou!ilt 	 • arl..S Arci..r 	Sh;.,  los 	koc,Int 

16,T3'3,413D 11/76,7.33,40974,J1U3 P7.4, 	1.1,...1:33 	7 .51 c);3 P74, 81 ?.,T38 

;:,•1:,'?,4 712 

r; 

C.7ish 	 cle.-Aatert 	 evaivalent 	300,1„, Qc the 

Cerrii..any'.. net inee:Tre 	 tCLIVk;f:Aidi; 	dot:tan:A in year 2003 ard there was 
'r;htt 1;r:.;1: three 
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HOLDERS OF COMMON STOCK As of March 31, .2006: 
TOP 20 Stockh..:)Iders 

14 -1rne 	 _[ Nat ClassI 	 IaIes Pairentalle 

POD NOMINEE c:;QRP. (H.Ii(2 	FI1 	".% 	{ 54,079 345.00 	68 57C030% 

	

1 10J:28754.00 	23.749937% AMALGAMATED INV, eANcoRP. 	Ell. 	A, 

laCi,) NOMINEE CORP. (NON-F1L, . \ 	1 FOR 	. A 	 4,302,582.00 	 5 .570234% : 
ERIC B BENITEZ 	 EIL 	A 	I 	379,439.00 i 0.481167% J 

NfE1.71.1SSA B. LIMCAOCO Fl- 	Ht.. 	A 	1 	12C,47e,00 	: 3.160388% 

DANIELLE B. 1...IMCA0C0  
RENE B. I3ENI1 EZ rrf LORENZ L. 	FIL 	 12b,,l',?0.00 I 0.160388% 

BENITEZ 	
1 

' RENE B. BENITEZ if: CAk 

	

I 	t,,ILL./\ F. 	HO 	' 	1 120.479k0 ! 0.160386% 

BENITEZ .. 	. 	 I 
G. ENN 	N. 	BFI',,I1 	 it. TEZ 	ITF F. 	A 	1 	12(3.4.00 	0160P/0 
ALESSANDRA 	 I 

C. BEN,:7EZ 
GLENN E. 13E.?.,,IIT'EZITE ALFON.:".0, C. 	t-0... 	1 A 	 126,ii-i 9.0G 	0.160288% 

BENI 
GLENN B. k( FL!ITT' ANIWIEA ,!:.2.. 	Eh_ 	 126,479.00 	i 0.160'38e% 

BENITEZ 	 I  
MELLISSA B. 1...IMCA0C.0 ifF 	FR. 	A 	 126,470 00 	0.160388% 

IVIC 	.1 HEI,  A ..it..ICAOCC.) 	 I 	 i _...... 	...- 	-   	... 	. 	._.. 	. 

	

A,Oco 	 HI... 	ii. 	I 	12.6470.C10 [_ 0 10305% 

1 	1.AN'..ia I:. i...e!'FORT[21A 	 Hi_ 	A 

	

I 	1159.39.0.0 	0.- 47. 022';;) 
1 	 H 

\IEf TE ;:;:::.... '''!,R,e`:. I'M 	 I:IL 	A 	 10 .r.': ,1,:).00 	0 01336G% 

: 	 HI 	 10 5,1',,f ,q0 	! 
	

Cl 0 .1 

	

.. 	,,7, 
.„.. \ 

VF:--N JS: C.) I"',N4J13,1,,P. 	 ITU._ 	A 

	

' 	1.15,10..I.;0 	0.010380% A 

Gi..0;R,,.A. ,,...HL.N.1  AN0 	 Ht.. 	, A  

	

, 	1 r.'.i,i10.Cic)1 	1-3356% 

I 

	

.... 	 1-- 
1,!..Aki_:) IT)E1A s,.':;.1E.STA 	 HI. 	p, 	 1 0, :::,40.0C 	! 	0 013(...8% .,... 	- 	- 
Al. IIRED(..) FtI'.Y1;:: 	 I'll... 	A 	 10540 00 	[ 	0,013365°,10 

	

10.  14.0. 00 	ki 	0.01?360% kI,,T. ;11.ki..) 0. F:ki-,NC..'. ,,': 	i 	 FIL 	A 
101 ;. 	 78,C446133.00 1 09.729301% 

L,01)1.FI-,  S17.'....KI.ICI'.1,1")Fl,':1-`, C,.3..f1'i 	 A 	 213,463.00 	1. 	0.270599% 

liri,',i, 1-1I13 -10-1A1. ( F l .,.:',.,..-x..;!,.!- 1,:_ .:,..,.:.,) 	 78863,121.00 	tl T..1.000000% ._.. 

(!.:F.P.,•;" 6. 	 0'4 	ol Plaa 

x;v1Pnyip.r.!1::.1z.17, 

	

ita3. 61.d.;:;'oed 	 ofimgrutfiLvA tha ciAtizIii:y of it.:3 

ari,r1f r1F 	 vFue. 	LeC:olitparty has 	to o.;.:Iopt aIe 
.tor.,lt,r.trIg.ttik.nt 	for0.10,,:i In ft tixisting itiche 

Co,,,.111.11.av aiso infcnc.:;z to c 7230:1 
c1. 
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LAMALGAMATED INV. 13ANCX.MP, 

15e0 NOMINEE CO11,1P. 

ERIC 6 13E1411 E7 

1.4ELLISSA 13. LINICACCO iT 
DANIELLE El. LIMCAOC,Ca 

RENE B. 13ENITE7. !IF 1..OFs'Ei!2..C,1  

BENITEZ 

 

F11. 	; A 

I 1 

FOR A 

Fra. 	LA 

I 

L. 	Fa.. 	1 A 

 

1 

RENE E.1.. BENITEZ FIF CARMEL:At... 	FIL. 	A 

BENITEZ 	

1, 7 F ::',. 	In 	/1.. 	t A 

1 

ALE.S;.--V1.1\11.71-ii), 	 ! 

C. 131:7-.1.1:7 EZ 	 1 
t- -_ 

i7..;LENN B. 1.3[7.±,014:2: ITi: P,LF(.......) C.  

BE.NI I E2: 

GLENN F3. .i.T: 1'411-a2 171: AN1II,',6A C. 	1:1I. 	1. 

BEN111.7./ 

, t,AE.: Li._ i ...-3S.,:''. .1.3. ;...;Nlj`.....',..AC.)1....',C) i' i' F. 	 F. 1_ 

_. 	..... 	... 	.. 	_. P, L'IC,A.,(:-.)(,:70 

t./C.", t..''...'....i4, i...i• 1 .•',',,..V.,,,Cj(.:...,‘,....'• 	 t FR.. 	: il. 

i,.,.1.•i...',,̀....11.,./.1-k 	 FiL 	! ,r.‘ 

	

L . 	, i 	/•, 

. 1-...',L.-1',..- '2:._.! .•'.!...`:" ':.., 	':..-.. ,...NTC.';'...i; 	 1 	i'li. .. 	, 
! 	,'-', 

V1f-JTJE• ...•• 1'. \ci-'...iro''F.' 	 i'll... 	' A 
; 
! 
	

• 
A 

A 

::)NA Quarto!!!.  ;(01:$0 
	

h 
	

!:7.71!vi 

Pric;c,, 	 11 2.00 
	

2.00 

I-101..DFERS OF C(.74,./AVION 7;TOCK.i.,...s of March 31, 

-1 'OP 20 Stccki1,:.aldfJrs 

Nat 	1 	 ; 	Ni. ot Stkie;,J Pat 	ccntaae 

1:i..._;2/0 RF.Y1.:.•'j 	 Ht., 	..! A 
,-- 

..i•.V...: 	i:',..i-,,i.) L 	f 'I .-,,.:',_.;•'4,,•:.11•;..,:•. ,...,!: i 	 i 	PL, 
`- 

A 

1 

:3,1,079 :3/16 00 

18,128754.00 

4,302582.00 

T 

1 

I 
--, 

..C!:),...,01 

Sri 5-76030`X, 

2 	74 9P37 )̀/• 

5.57023-4% 

0.481167% 	_I 

3.160328% 

0.163388% 

0.1E.;03861   

a 1 Ei02 8i2,Yo 

('  

0.1t.!0388 .̀  

0.160365% 

0.1 ba?tiFi',/t) 

C. 	47. 022:) . 

001 	315 

0.0133bC% 

0.013"..)AR3°,11.) 

0.C.)1?36670 

09.f 	;0 

• •-t 

! 

i 

1 
I 

I 

! 

i 
'i 

, , 

. 

9.0 3/9430 

123470 03 

12.0,..4,?.:100 

1 :2C..479.!..]0 

- 
1 2 ...', 4../ P. 00 

126.6 . /  9.01.: 

12,470. 30 

12E;,470 CO 

I...:?64-,'0.00 

I 	1 :...-.:97:3o.(...:J 

1r.) 	!-yi,'..i.ci(-: 

l'O',...11.]'f.:0 
•';!:.i,40.Ci0 

. 

l',.)';')/-1.0 00 

'o,,.'.  4 .cl,  oo 
7814.0..,b600 

i 

1 

1 
I 

t 

I, 

10r.,f71  

•t-- 

: 

I 
I 
i 

' 

1  

I 

( 

i 

i 

' 

r 

I ',-).1..,"... 
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Lending Activities 

Being its core operations, the Company has formulated plans to expand its lending 
operations that will guarantee sustained growth even beyond the year 2005. Its lending 
activities and loan products will still be focused on the niche consumer loan market and SME 
markets, due to the experience it has gained from these segments. MFC will also undertake 
steps to raise the quality of service it provides to its current and future clients. As part of its 
future plans and prospects the Company has outlined the following for its lending activities 
for the forecast period 2004 to 2006. 

• Expansion of the Company's distribution network for its Rx Cashline, MFC Factors and 
secured business loan products to provincial areas such as Batangas in the South and 
Tarlac and Pampanga in the North; 

• Continuation and expansion of individual and corporate motorcycle unit financing 
through a tie-up with Honda Motor World; 

• Develop new niche markets related to medical professionals, and design loan products 
that would cater to the requirements of these markets; 

• Adopt an integrated information system that will match the changes and expansion of 
loan products and services of the Company; 

• Updating and finalization of MFC's operating manuals. 

Funds Generation 

Serving as the lifeblood of the firm's operations, the Company is aware of the need to 
have a constant flow of funds to support its lending operations. Although part of that 
requirement will be met by loans collections, the Company will need to have additional 
resources if it intends to undertake further expansion in the future. The Company intends to 
meet this additional requirement through the following: 

• Availment of additional credit lines from banks; 

• Disposal of other acquired assets such as real estate properties in the provinces of Nueva 
Ecija, Bulacan, and Lucena. 

Year 2005 

Results of Operations 

Net income after tax from tentative audited financial statements for the year 2005 was 
P11.5 million. The drop was primarily due to the changes in financial reporting standards 
being imposed effective January 1, 2005. Unadjusted net operating income would have been 
P15.4 million, which was 120% of year 2004's audited net income. The difference between the 
tentative net results against the unadjusted net income was due to various adjustments in 
recognition of certain income and on certain expense items - revaluation of financial assets. 

Financial Condition and Capital Resources 

For the year ended December 31, 2005, the company's total assets reached P171.6 
million. Despite the revaluation in assets because of the implementation of new international 
accounting standards, the increase in assets was 25.3% of last year's restated amount of 
assets. Increase in the Company's borrowings was due to increased loan production towards 
the latter part of the year. Motorcycle financing and increased factoring beefed up the loan 
portfolio for the year. 



fte-7.-,,tri:so ":.)i.itratioits 

Net Inconie alter tax for the year 20U4 	P14.2 rei!lion while n 	rICOMf: after tax for 
the year 2003 was F;t12.7iiol, all increase of 10.9%, Inc company continued to produce more 
cuca•ty k;iiatt; despite,  the increa.;e in ex 	for the year. 	her income increased by 171.7% 
mainly cue to a, recovery et cared <1;:i rzcaivahie khrough payment of property. Deterred tax 
rsarit amounting 	P5.9 mi0i,enutere reversed lc reflect reaflzabla value of this asset. 

I...inane!al 	 tQcsotirer.i.,.F.; 

For th year ended December 31, 2004, WC's total assets amounted to P136.63 million. 
ReceivaNe.s which were already uncollectible totaling P19.6 million were written-off. A property 

Fitosario, La Union was acquired as payment of a written off reeieivable valued at P4.0 million. 

The year's net income increased the retained earnings to P33.7 million for 44.2% of year 
2901 f::errgs per share for the year was P0,18 While return on assets was 16.4%. P3.6 million 
or thirly percent of the net income for 2003 were declared as dividends, fifty percent were 

ca end the other fifty per"ent were stock dividends., 

of 5,247,er:;,,CriG 

ts;"31 ii- C,0;11V. for the year 2606 %vas lal2 7 million vithic net income tot the year 2002 was 
Cc.6 1:1Gn, an L•iprovervi..q.1 of 10.9%. The COFrIpi:Wy Continued to produce more quality loans 

and 	'itn 	ue:tierisca for the yczr. Pare}, (A Ow ft.,Cad,:i generated from the initial 
o 	waN uf3f),L1 tc pi4 off Vh,c,,  company's oe;•:ozriding obligations which reduced the 

bood:J 

r.,onoilie:s and 	19 Flo. • wrier, 

a•ort.1,0 yore casdA Dc-cvrnbc:4,  31, 2063,, 	tclei aiiwyb3 amounted to fal 11.79 
Fte,.c.ciii,raL4es wi,•e,ch pro",retl, to lie unc.ollecill;qe totaling P16.1 million wero witten-off. The 

ih9 	 cliehing were used to pay off maturing obligations and fund new 
c4f NAIT•o•tfeill 40a4;S, ittt,:qUir red a%tielZia Mattati, Tagyvtay and a portion of the Merville 

gold during 	yrAr. Ttiere wine no additions to the company's foreclosed 
t,n1ae 1 tineuu.ufred 	 otint,N1 to R0.'52 rrsillion. 

't-Ve ven's nst hlcon•ie increased th 	tied eorlinAs to P23,4 million for 20.6% of year 
2002_tur an tr.,ili4• 	dc year i.rr .?:.3 "1".9i',4, Whil0 rr On assets was 12.2%. 

Itch,. 	firtavoial 

Tite 	 herrv,,vitt.. eqar.nati as "AMIFX A". 
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pART 	CON-FP,OL AU C:e.)7.,f1PENV3P.TifM. RIFORMATION 

Item !;. 	rc 	Ec1,11-ivo Officer:,  

i?oc ,c of )iro/os 

ThouuntAW-  m'.1H‘iobers1 	 ff':tors of the Company as of December 
31, 2005. 

13 Benitez, Chairman, 77, Mr. Benitez.. has served as a Director since the 
Company's iw;orporation. de is also the Chairman of Obstetrics and Gynecology of the Makati 
Medical Center, MERG Reaity Cotrxwaition and Amalgamated Development Corporation. 
Concurrently, Dr. Benitez Is the Vice-Chairman of Alb and a director of Nationwide Health 
Systems. He W3S 1.`(ivrnarly the Chairman of Obstetrics and Gynecology of the University of the 
Philippines I Philippine General Hospital where he worked from 1955 to 1988. He is presently 
the Chairman cif the Examiiiing Board of SGOP, Philippines, and a member of the American 
College of StiTgeons, the Philippine College of Surgeons and the Philippine OB-Gyne Society, 
Pie obtained his Doctor of Medicine degree from the University of the Philippines, specialised in 
Obstetrics and Gyitocciogy at John Hopkins University, Baltimore, Maryland and took ccurses 
inMor 	 Programof tnc doMaplia University. 

1-fic),. Vc.o 	 ite has served as a Director since 1996. 
Mr. 	 ctirmfely F.!1:1 0:1;i1-. EF:i-man ofAtE3 	d Global Alliances, inc. He was t'onnerly the 
eir Vir.eAcient 	Chief linvcitricnni Ofti.;,,cr of the Phifippine American Life Instirance 

Philinines") where 	 a Vil...h7o'd o eimeter in several of the company's 
Mc,aCtOr c AIG Investment Corporation (Asia) 

Ltd., iiikestrnt 	 rhi!ii..11.Arei.3;  Beacon Property Ventures, Inc. 
Fio to joiifizto the AICIPhilarnliis Group, he th)ti wortied for 13 years for Chase: Manhattan 
l.hAnA. H 	 s 	t3i'.igree hn linurco 	Maikating from Colombia University in 
It.)la and ;dried the 	Diivelova-cent ojrL.,m of Cornell Univertilty. 

Jn fvklxiiioo O. Botruiaeo„Sonior Pvlim,,tiliv Director; 55, Ha has been a Director since 2000. 
AsirAiu from being a Director of the Company, Mr. Borromeo is concurrently the President and a 
Dirnotor of Hceida Cars Cebu„ Inc., Honda Motor World, Inc., HMV Lending Investors, Dearborn 
Motors Co., no, Asttent Gostue, Inc., Visayas Auto Ventures, Inc., Cebu Maxi Management 
Corperation, Maxi Agriculture] Corporation, Cebu Parkland, Inc. He is also a Director in the 
fL:WO etempanies: Cebu Holdings Inc., Borromeo Brothers Estate, Inc., Margarita Agro-
inttostrial Corp., .5e.loci Doacnie,o Vaitmdation„ Inc. and McBros Development Corporation. At 
present, M. Eon-or-no) is the gOVGIViOr Of the. Cebu BLISiriess Park. He graduated with a 
Bachelor of itwl:s degree in Economics from the Ateneo de Manila University. 

M. Ronro 	fiRb.if ‘ 	 42, He has been a Director since 1996. Mr. 
iiehlrez. 	tha Managing iilisctor of the 	 Prior to joining the Company, he held the 
pei7itiori of Ceuntry 'Manager e the ip$...i'Jfie...`10;.n111 Conic of Singapore ("DBS") Securities, Inc. 
ft 	e; h?id 	ep 	n;e it leei 	nl local iirdestmeatt b2mking anti capital market 

Invv5kmerd anti Trust Corporation, Shearson 
l.n Fircyihtm ctisN). t tI Fi,nchv. 	 (USA) and the World Dank. He was 
fer.i.ct4 	 rqiifippkiy? Steck E'.r.thEinGc nod is currently Director of H. Thomas 

	

Inn:,, Von Ai; Pi:Mita Support 	 Pikeville, Inc., MERG Realty and 
De' eeprnerit Ccrpo;'o. 	nrwrcii Con t-nntir Credit Corporation, Global Credit and 

Grotti„..), 	 Pt helices. He graduated 
from 	 dcorann Hu n'sinoss Econornieu end 
0, .. i 	 L. fl 	a 	 from Yale University. 



	

To,'esita HP,:;;Ii!ez ii).ireek); 	 airice 2001 and is currently 
tha Presidant of Makati FiAanco. She nail piaanory raaaed fca-  the Philippine Dank of 
Caminereea AS3iStaili Pat-sonnet Pillonager arid United Coconut Dank as Assistant Corporate 
becretery. She had aiao :lean director at Pariatrust mark and Amalgamated Development 
Corporation. At present she is the Treasurer arid Director of Nationwide Health Syste.nrs and 
FU3 Development Corporation and the President of MERG Realty and Development 
Corpoiation. Ms. Benitez obtained a Dea;iicior of SCiCE/CO degree in Commerce from the 
Uriiversity ciin Francisca 

S. Furr; fanaiator, 50, He tias uervad as a Director eince 1998. Mr. Ferrer is 
currently the President of PARMAN Inc., an overseas recruitment company. At the same time 
he also manages his family's aquaculture business. Previous to this, he had worked for 
ERECSA, Inc. where ho was the Executive Vice President. His other woalt experience includes 
being an Investment cxeoutiva at the SUCliclia Paton-rational Bank of indorresia and a Lending 
Officer at the Bank of America. Ho obtainad ins Pilaster 	reei B',2SiileSS Management from 
the Asian institute of etlaniffvritcnt and eorapbatod ttic 	Busineas Economics Program 
of the tinilrirsity of Asia unri the Pacific, 

	

tlyplo P. Nilo, 0.7octor, Cl, 	 3 i..alCfr`'f' 	 C o currently a 
Oiracaor c 	atad lavaatmciai Liantaarporatiari. Mr Vito had kiica7.1 tin7; 	Direz.tor 

C:41..ip of if.:;',:114,13:ii3 and itne Marw.gir, 	 BOSTKif) PLOp & Vapor Scm. End. 
also .L.d t'*in pc,inVGri 	 CEO 	Tire t,.:::7ddtng. Mr. Nil graduated tvith a 

et` icea 	 aDeocao from rte U 	of Santo Toris and 
Givdn 	z•.t. tk!e 	of 	 attended a Tado 

the t.17hin 71k.r;lailait Eliank to Ow ilintf.":1'.'a,iates 	I903. 

31.1, 	v4...ra 	 Mrector ordy in the last quarter ef .7003. 
jacr:o) 	Ices, conctliierAy the Corporate Secretary of Paorion, 

aa.7... and Exe,7,sfl.°v1 Sai::c&I.4irky "If the Philippine Assealation or Securities Brokers and 11:,alers, 
III V!Lt:; ;:d?i: a torarier D.:rooter of the SCCtilit5 & Exchange Commission from 1”99 to 

A-:21 Atty. Fiejea finished hire 	halair of Laws at the University of Southern F-'hilippinca hi 
Ceba City. 

Ciliq 'far, Heng, Di, actor, .:31,1-ko,  itt.o7t 'Leen [)..tor since 2091. In addition to being . 
Dixafor of the Company, Pia'. Chia is concurrently the Vice President for Finance of SNP 
CorpoL'ation Lfai. 'Hie hes been with the company eines 19(.5. Previous to this, he had worked 
ea irn Accounting Artalyat t'zq Fisher Co 	.k; Pte Ltd. Mr. Chia graduated with Bacheior of 
iact.oentarray Degree front the lianyang fechociogical Univereity. 

M. IV,•ciielei ;1/ee'L300/1 Lock;  Ditectter, 	He has fierved difS C Director 1.5inf.e. I 	L Wee,  
is a senior ASEAN banker and retired Executive Chairman of Development Bank of Singapore 
Saciliesiloidarig PIE Ltd, Ha has held the positions of the Chairman of NatSteel Ltd., Deputy 

of CIS Land, Eaarrutive V. Vreattkait oT the Development Bank of Singapore, 
Cie! Seaahitias 	 Sirajapore 'Lats. Servico Ltd., Laguna National Go h and 
Cl 	!...td and 	Oiceotor of f,i',rC 	Bonk, Ltd. Mr. Wee graduated with a 
La-a faaor ra?' fialence fiaajiaa: 	Cho:rah...al Eaga :lering from the University of Birmingham and 
otaaiaaaa 	i'lLaaara ilaaartar ia Finance if0:11ik 	 f Ftririati Coiornhia. 

at 	 !..7.eye.,-; act as the tvr a (2) 



Senior Manageinenl 

The following comprise the Company's management teorn. No one is considered a significant 
employee since all current employees are under regular employment contracts and no special or 
change-in-control arrangements were entered into by the Company and its employees. The fo!lowing 
discussion gives a brief background on their accomplishments and their respective areas of 
responsibility. 

Mr. Emmanuel F. Lafoifeza, Comptroller, 43, Ne has been emptived by the Company since 
2001. Conourrent to his current position as tha Compairy'n Coinptroiier, Mr. Laforteza also acts 
as Comptroller and Corporate Secretary for Am, posinons that he hns held since 2001. He h33 
had more than 17 years of experience in the linarice and banking industry. Previous to this, he 
hod worked as a Senior Manelier at Koppel 5.3ank Philippines and at Urban Bank of the 
Philippines. Mr. Laforleza obtained his Bachelor of Science Dogren in J\ccountiiig from the 
University of Sto. Tomas. tie also has a Masters Degree in Business Administration from the 
Atoneo Cradirate School of Business. 

Mr. Vidor t.. Guerrero, Senior Manager of Account Management Group, 36, He has been 
employed by the Company since 1996. Previous to his ernpioyment in the Company, Mr. 
Guerrero has had close to 11 years of experience in the Enema) business. He had served In 
various positions in the United Coconut Planters Bank until 1995 arid was Manager of the 
Product Management and Development Department of the First Women's Credit Corporation 
until 1997. Mr. Guerrero graduated with a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics from the 
University of Santo Tomas. 

M3. Felvirina C. Cruz, Chief Accountant, 37, She has been employed by the Company 
shine 1995. Ms. Cruz is a Certified Public Accountant iAnlit niore than 11 years of experience In 
th3 finance business. Before MFC, she had previously boon employed with Fortune Savings 
and Loan Assochtlon as Audit Assistant end First Werrien't; Credit Corporation as a Branch 
Acnoiintant. For a time she also served as t%o acctstmting nr.3ad of Commercial & Con numer 
Crnt:nt Corporation, a MFC suboidiary. Ms. Cruz graf,,loatirni with a Bachelor of SOence Degree 

Buoiness Administration from the National College o-7 1:31ii...t!f!deSt3 and 

	

Mr. Albert J. Dak:con: 	Affr.in,scriir, OFT;ce Cliporerk•in:.; and ili:„.ftii.reo 	17, Ha has 
been eniployel by the Comps:ski F...;rice 2000, 	to his erriplcyrricut with the Company, Mr, 
Beiacil had st;rved in via-1111s turiction3 in a Fitti'ribeT of coini27..nies 	 trt,ars. His 
Moro 	job exper:i..nceo 	with 	 et AtitTeini5b.ctivo Aceistarit, Toyot,i, Bel- 
Air, Inc, as Finer,.All C;cordigidica and 	 inc. as a Mallielinf71  Officer. Mr. Batecan 
gi..atiusted with a Baclkilor cf tici.:Alce in 	 ClasT-e.,z.,1 ,̀.-or7, the ..etran 

item 10. Exit.ictitive 

The Comp-  any has an existing ritunagenicrit contract with Honda Motor 1Neviri for aivice 
aysi.,:,tance to be provided by Mr. Maximo 0. Borromeo as Senior Managing Director and 

with Pikevilie:  Inc. for advice and a*sistance to be provided by Mr. Rene 13. Benitez: a3 
a r, i% Director. The directors receive per dinin each arnotintfing to 910,000 for every Board 

uneclrig they attend. 



Aggregate 
Compensation (._/%9__ 

Name and Plincipal Position 

Executive Officors 
Maximo 0. Borromeo — Senior Managing 
Director 
Rent:. B. Benitez Mana(-;ing Diiectcr 
Victor L. Guerrero — Senior Manager 
Felviritia C. Cdr UZ -- Manage; 
Albert.  J. Batacan -- Manager 
All Executive Officers as a Ciotio 	 4,198,362 

Executive Compensation 

Year 

For the twelve (12) 
Months Ended December 
31, 2005 (Actual) 

All Board Directors and Officers ao, 	 4,980,143 
Group 

For the twelve (12) 	Executive Officers 
Months Ended December Maximo 0. Borrorneo Senor Managing, 
31, 2004 (Actual) 	 Dii actor 

Rona D. Benitez — iA.-Joaging Director 
Victor L. Guerrero Senior Manager 
Felvirina C. Cruz — Manager 
.a!b,,7,:rt J. Batacon — Manager 
Ail E;;ecutive Officers as a Gi•olAr. — 	 _ 3,808,820_ 
A'd Poard Directors 	Offieem a3 is 	 3,973,526 
Geoup 

Item 11. Security Ownership of Certain 1 ia4clicial Ovmors and Management 

A.  

Title and 
Class 

B00 AND OFFICERS OWNING alORE THAN 5% EQUITY 

DIRECT 

of Shares °A to Total 

Common Amalgamated Inve.Ainent Bancorporation 48,531,697 61.54% 

Common Pikeville Bancshares 7,534,402 9.55% 

Common Michael Wee Son Lock 4,392,682 5.57% 

TOTAL 60,458,681 76.67% 

INDIRECT 

NONE ---- 0% 

TOTAL b0,483,681 76.67% 

B.  COD AND OF 	VATi 	fPfli 

TitiCiass 

CG.iiirtCon 	1A/ef; 

Common 

Coalmen 1::ene B Bervt..)z ,n 

Ccrur.ton 	13 13epr..ez 	1111Y1 I ii Carr,lou I 

CC;C'11();1 Fiji(' [3. 13enit, 	ii; 	fff: I 

;0. 

No. of iThares 

1,392.582 

2,529,793 

126,479 

126,479 

126,479 

2.909,230 

% to Total 

5 57% 

3.21% 

0 16% 

0 16% 

0.16% 

3 69% 



Common Joel 3. Ferrer 1.072,470 1.36% 
Common Teresita B. Benitez 368,473 0.47% 
Common Maximo 0. Borromeo 212,917 0.27% 
Common Isidro B. Benitez 134059 0.17% 
Common Emmanuel Laforteza 115,939 0.15% 
Common Chia Ye.n Heng 16 0.00% 
Common Juan Carlos del Rosario 16 0.00% 
Common Augusto P. Nilo 10 0.00% 
Common Atty, Eugenio E. Reys 10 0.00% 

TOTAL 9,205,752 11.67% 
C. BOD AND OFFICERS WITH INDIRECT OWNERSHIP 

TitieiChss No. of Shares % to Total 

Common Isidro B. Benitez 425,834 0.54% 
Common Teresita B. Benitez 220,803 0.28% 
Common Rene B. Benitez 102,516 0.13% 
Common Maximo 0. Borromeo 18,964 0.02% 

TOTAL 768,117 0.97% 

kern 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

Dr. Isidro 3. Benitez and M. Teresita B. Benitez are spouses, and Mr. Rene B. Benitez 
is their son. 

Related Party izInsact(Jns 

Tnt.t folk:mini-1 IransaGtions have been Etntefeci into with related pt:trti.,,, t,: 
il,  ll..ts of Transactions _ 

N,..iitu,: 	of PA.LN.,,ocl tql.turef)1 li:,!.ulcv. 	!'; .:-...t.t Amount inconx State' en ',,,zit)i.. fli 

•-1Tilry,. P:tii). 	Pcii.4:),,i0p 1 L'.ftsacror; 211.1'S :2001 2005 2004 

f'- 

'a,•114e.s i;,00(),(:),i)(1 

t 	'Jr 	i 	i..: , ! 	,',•t-w,ti;z•:.?„ 1'4. 	11-1 ,-1'... P364.670 

Itncrcst 'i . .,c,,•,-c,L; 719.859  

4,3.5.'8,43C0 40.000 

.1 	t;iC0file. 177,144; 

;'..i,•11.,. 	it,. al,,sy 	anl 	1.;-„-,:::oprc.,.: , ..'. 

; 	0,-;,,K,,./..,,,, ';,, ,•: .1,f-,,.kr 1:o..4,7ivtiblcs 2,-:01 

l'ayAk.s 3 34:71,710 6,401 

Itt!!thtl _ 45:6,4,80 452,545 

1,,locst expense. 43,778 9,61') 

Trallvot tat tort/ 

0.i0:::, FAnc St,x4.11olc1:2f 

1,111) ,,kiLtf:, 

5;‘,6slo,!try 

Others 

rorrclit of Advariccs 

i'“%eivabli;s.  

I 1„7,19,011t1 

87,9111 127,753 

ir 1;) 1,0r) st;h:1;tfituL, iceivablL's 67.01-1 

Soms;(isr... A (h awed 1. spen,-; 61,014 

1,1111,7815 

‘,1 	AcIvki.ihc, 1,,.466,"7:10 

',11 	I, 	.I;;;Inc.• 	Seis .,. 	s PL A 	,Itilei 30.702 

:,i,,,,, (..0) No,,:mu,',.11'',,,c0.,,s 80,702 



fleinents 01 transactions 

Nettre of 	 t1Maitcc, Sheet Amount 	Income  Statement  Amount 

I iamactioit 	 2095 	2004 	2005 	2004 __ 
Prolessionat I 	 500,000 
PcecivablcN 	 310;805 	 — 

1i ofessional Fcc 	 — 	700,000 	 — 

Profrssional fee; 	 — 	 1.200,000 

NItmagorieM fees 	1,639_5./2 	 — 	2,306,902 	1.296.647 

Nature of it elated 

lontia N4 for \\ old 
	

Affiliates 

( htiers 
	 Stockholder( 

Affiliates 
Directors 
Direct: trs 

PART EXHIBiTS AND SCHEDULES 

item 13. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C 

(a) Exhibit 

The Company's audited financial statements are berei)y attached as "ANNEX A". 

(b) Reports on SEC For 17-C 

The reports on SEC Form 17-C filed during the :act six months ended December 31, 
2005 are hereby attached "At,INEX B". 

Quarterly Financial Reports (Form Type FCFQ1) for the quarter ending December 31, 
2005 were submitted to the SEC on Februaiy 14, 2006 end for the quarter ending September 30, 
2605 on November 15, 2005. 



By: 

TERESITA B. BENITEZ EMMANUEL F. LAFORTEZA  
Principal Financial Officer/Comptroller 

C- 
FELVIRINA C. CRUZ?  

Principal Executive Officer 

,/ 
MAMCY6. BORROMEO 

SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation Code, this 
report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of 
	 on 	 , 20_ 

Principal Operating Officer Principal Accounting Officer 

s:- 4 b LUU1114 
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me 'airs 1 	day of April 2006 affiant(s) exhibiting to 

me his/their Residence Certificates, as follows: 

NAMES RES. CERT. NO. DATE OF ISSUE PLACE OF ISSUE 

Teresita B. Benitez 24781360 01/02/2006 Makati City 

Max 0. Borromeo 13838745 01/31/2005 Cebu City 

Emmanuel Laforteza 24805788 01/12/2006 Makati City 

Felvirina C. Cruz 24805790 01/12/2006 Makati City 

Danilo Enrique Co 08398668 01/04/2006 San Juan, M.M. 

     

In, 

 

?"'11  1-7) 0LA $ 	$ 

  

Notary Public 

0,C, 
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N. ) _ 

STATEINIENT OF MANACEM.ENT'S RESPONSIBILITY 

The fianutyrrienl of Makaii 	 is respowlble for nit inUmation nrd 

•:.,011toined in the (Judiled f1tict!cis11,1alet our ts d••• of 1.),- ,..7...ember 31, 2(X.)5. 2004 arid 2003. The 
financial stcementsliave bucrr prepared in cor,torinity \Nith 0(.:•:r-)0cally accepted accounting ,arincides in 

ine Fulippir 	and otlecl at rot 	that ate hosed on ti;lr..;s1 estimates and informed judgment of 
approottoie consid0ivt1;ati to rs)01.0111y. 
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_►  SGV & Co • SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. 
6760 Ayala Avenue 
1226 Makati City 
Philippines 

■ Phone: (632) 891-0307 
Fax: 	(632) 819-0872 
www.sgv.com.ph  

BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0001 
SEC Accreditation No. 0012-F 

Report of Independent Auditors 

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors 
Makati Finance Corporation 
2nd Floor, Makati Finance Centre 
7823 Makati Avenue, Makati City 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Makati Finance Corporation as of 
December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity 
and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Philippines. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Makati Finance Corporation as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of 
its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the Philippines. 

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & COMPANY 

Renato J. Galve 
Partner 
CPA Certificate No. 37759 
SEC Accreditation No. 0081-A 
Tax Identification No. 102-087-055 
PTR No. 4180840, January 2, 2006, Makati City 

March 16, 2006 

SGV & Co is a member practice of Ernst & Young Global 

H II III II II II II II II 

  



MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION 
BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31 

2005 

2004 
(As restated - 

Note 2) 

ASSETS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents P3,291,906 P5,240,774 

Loans and Receivables - net (Notes 6 and 16) 128,725,748 88,310,243 

Investment Properties (Note 7) 23,288,212 25,526,072 

Property and Equipment - net (Note 8) 6,800,653 2,683,665 

Deferred Tax Asset (Note 14) 6,092,585 12,805,900 

Other Assets - net (Note 9) 3,021,574 2,446,004 
P171,220,678 P137,012,658 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Notes Payable (Notes 11 and 16) P37,308,333 P13,500,000 

Accrued Expenses (Note 18) 3,699,554 4,734,802 

Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities (Note 12) 3,940,001 2,504,237 
44,947,888 20,739,039 

Stockholders' Equity (Note 13) 
Capital stock 78,858,118 76,733,409 
Additional paid-in capital 4,347,611 4,347,611 
Retained earnings 43,137,061 35,192,599 
Net unrealized loss on available-for-sale investments (Note 9) (70,000) 

126,272,790 116,273,619 
P171,220,678 P137,012,658 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

Years Ended December 31 

2005 

2004 
(As restated - 

Note 2) 

INTEREST INCOME P33,943,286 P36,400,318 
INTEREST EXPENSE (Notes 11 and 16) 1,000,030 150,625 
NET INTEREST INCOME 32,943,256 36,249,693 
PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (Note 10) 1,168,642 1,411,203 
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR 

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 31,774,614 34,838,490 
OTHER INCOME 
Service charges 1,088,552 1,489,283 
Gain on sale of acquired assets 743,411 45,360 
Recovery on asset charged off — 4,000,000 
Miscellaneous 4,921,726 666,189 

6,753,689 6,200,832 
OTHER EXPENSES 
Salaries and employees' benefits (Notes 15 and 16) 3,649,757 4,704,798 
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7 and 8) 2,468,552 1,173,089 
Taxes and licenses 2,299,195 2,313,704 
Professional fees (Note 16) 2,131,650 5,969,463 
Management fees (Note 16) 1,875,868 1,296,047 
Transportation and travel (Note 16) 674,525 625,352 
Rent (Notes 16 and 19) 499,315 452,545 
Amortization of deferred charges (Note 9) 420,930 420,930 
Entertainment, amusement and recreation (Note 14) 375,525 322,888 
Commissions 367,915 410,944 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 222,531 
Litigation/asset acquired expenses 51,520 1,170,464 
Miscellaneous (Notes 16 and 18) 3,117,438 2,693,517 

18,154,721 21,553,741 
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 20,373,582 19,485,581 
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 14) 
Current 1,466,363 900,250 
Deferred 6,713,315 5,922,762 

8,179,678 6,823,012 
NET INCOME P12,193,904 P12,662,569 

Earnings Per Share (Note 17) P0.15 P0.17 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Capital Stock 

Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings 

Net Unrealized 
Loss on 

Available 
For-Sale 

Investments 
(Note 9) 

Total 
Capital Funds 

Balance at December 31, 2003 P74,818,068 P4,347,611 P23,360,751 P— P102,526,430 
Effect of change in accounting for: 

Revenues—PAS 18 1,083,222 1,083,222 
Retirement Benefits - PAS 19 81,208 81,208 
Investment Properties - PAS 40 — 1,836,046 1,836,046 

Restated balance 74,818,068 4,347,611 26,361,227 105,526,906 
Net income for the year 12,662,569 12,662,569 
Total income and expense for the year — 12,662,569 12,662,569 
Stock dividends 1,915,341 (1,915,341) 
Cash dividends (1,915,856) (1,915,856) 

1,915,341 — 8,831,372 10,746,713 
Balance at December 31, 2004 P76,733,409 P4,347,611 P35,192,599 P116,273,619 

Balance at December 31, 2004 
As previously reported P76,733,409 P4,347,611 P33,694,363 P— P114,775,383 

Effect of change in accounting for: 
Revenues — PAS 18 1,333,239 1,333,239 
Retirement Benefits - PAS 19 (167,714) (167,714) 
Investment Properties - PAS 40 332,711 332,711 

Balance at December 31, 2004 
as restated 76,733,409 4,347,611 35,192,599 116,273,619 

Effect of change in accounting for 
financial instruments - PAS 39 — — (100,000) (100,000) 

Balance at January 1, 2005, as adjusted 76,733,409 4,347,611 35,192,599 (100,000) 116,173,619 
Change in unrealized gain on AFS — — — 30,000 30,000 
Net income for the year 12,193,904 12,193,904 
Total income and expense for the year — 12,193,904 30,000 12,223,904 
Stock dividends 2,124,709 (2,124,709) — - 
Cash dividends - (2,124,733) (2,124,733) 

2,124,709 — 7,944,462 30,000 10,099,171 
Balance at December 31, 2005 P78,858,118 P4,347,611 P43,137,061 (P70,000) P126,272,790 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Years Ended December 31 

2005 

2004 
(As restated - 

Note 2) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Income before income tax P20,373,582 P19,485,581 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortization 2,468,552 1,173,089 
Provision for impairment losses 1,168,642 1,411,203 
Amortization of deferred charges 420,930 420,930 
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 222,531 
Gain on sale of investment properties (346,657) 
Gain on sale of property and equipment (99,999) (151,599) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Decrease (increase) in the amounts of: 
Receivables (35,372,161) (28,352,570) 
Other assets (816,500) 147,463 

Increase (decrease) in the amounts of: 
Accrued expenses (1,035,248) 1,909,352 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 2,732,277 (199,414) 

Net cash used in operations (10,284,051) (4,155,965) 
Income taxes paid (2,762,876) (519,817) 
Net cash used in operating activities (13,046,927) (4,675,782) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisitions of property and equipment (6,585,541) (3,354,254) 
Purchase of notes receivable (4,100,000) 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 100,000 151,599 
Net cash used in investing activities (10,585,541) (3,202,655) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Availments of notes payable 23,808,333 10,471,296 
Cash dividends paid (2,124,733) (1,915,856) 
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,683,600 8,555,440 

(Forward) 
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Years Ended December 
2004 

(As restated - 
2005 
	

Note 2) 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 	 (P1,948,868) 	P677,003  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF 
YEAR 	 5,240,774 	4,563,771  

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END 
OF YEAR 	 P3,291,906 	P5,240,774 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

n 
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MAKATI FINANCE CORPORATION 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Corporate Information 

Makati Finance Corporation (the Company) operates as a domestic corporation engaged in the sale 
of various financial products and services, catering generally to the consumer market. The 
Company's principal place of business is at the 2nd Floor, Makati Finance Centre, 7823 Makati 
Avenue, Makati City. The Company was listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on 
January 6, 2003 and is majority owned by Amalgamated Investment Bancorporation (AIB). 

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were authorized for issue by the board of 
directors (BOD) on March 16, 2006. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation 
The Company's financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial 
Reporting Standards (PFRS). These are the first annual financial statements of the Company 
prepared in compliance with PFRS. The accompanying financial statements are prepared using 
the historical cost basis except for available-for-sale (AFS) investments that have been measured 
at fair value. 

Changes in Accounting Policies 
On January 1, 2005, the following new accounting standards became effective and were adopted 
by the Company: 

• Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 19, Employee Benefits, provides for the accounting for 
long-term and other employee benefits. The standard requires the use of the projected unit 
credit method in determining the retirement benefits of the employees and a change in the 
manner of computing benefit expense relating to past service cost and actuarial gains and 
losses. It requires the Company to determine the present value of defined benefit obligations 
and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient regularity that the amounts recognized in 
the financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that would be determined at 
the balance sheet date. 

The effect of adopting this standard resulted in a transition liability amounting to 
P68,999 as of December 31, 2004. Net  income in 2004 decreased by P248,922 with a 
corresponding increase in liability of the same amount. 

• PAS 21, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, prohibits the capitalization of 
foreign exchange losses. The standard also addresses the accounting for transactions in 
foreign currency and translating the financial statements of foreign operations that are 
included in those of the reporting enterprise by consolidation, proportionate consolidation and 
equity method. The adoption of this standard had no material impact on the financial 
statements. 
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• PAS 30, Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Financial Institutions, 
provides for the required disclosure and presentation in respect of the accounts of banks and 
similar financial institutions. It also provides that provision for general banking risk is treated 
as appropriation of retained earnings and should not be included in the determination of net 
income for the period. In accordance with this standard, new disclosures were included in the 
accompanying financial statements, where applicable. 

• PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation, covers the disclosure and 
presentation of all financial instruments. The standard requires more comprehensive 
disclosures about the Company's financial instruments, whether recognized or unrecognized 
in the financial statements. In accordance with this standard, new disclosures were included in 
the financial statements, where applicable. 

• PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, establishes the accounting and 
reporting standards for recognizing, measuring, and disclosing information about the 
Company's financial assets and financial liabilities. PAS 39 also covers the accounting for 
derivative instruments. The standard has expanded the definition of a derivative instrument to 
include derivatives (derivative-like provisions) embedded in non derivative contracts. Under 
PAS 39, in determining whether a financial asset is impaired, reference is made to quoted 
market rates; in the absence of such quoted market rates, the discounted cash flow method is 
to be used. 

As allowed under PFRS 1, the effect of adopting PAS 32 and PAS 39 will not result in a 
restatement of prior year financial statements. Any cumulative effect of adopting these 
standards, however, will be charged against retained earnings as of January 1, 2005. 

PAS 39 requires that if there is objective evidence that impairment on loans and other 
financial assets carried at amortized cost are incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets' carrying amount and the present value of future cash flows. 
Prior to January 1, 2005, the adequacy of allowance for impairment losses on loans and other 
receivables and risk assets was determined based on management criteria. The effect of 
adopting PAS 39 provisions on impairment of financial assets had no impact on the financial 
statements. 

The effect of adopting the effective interest rate (EIR) method in measuring amortized cost for 
loans had no impact on the financial statements. However, the effect of adopting the provision 
of PAS 39 on the classification and related measurement of financial assets on the Company's 
financial statements decreased the stockholders' equity for the net unrealized loss on AFS 
amounting to P100,000 as of January 1, 2005. 

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has no outstanding derivatives transaction. 
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• PAS 40, Investment Property, prescribes the accounting treatment for investment property and 
related disclosure requirements. This standard permits the Company to choose either the fair 
value model or cost model in accounting for investment property. Fair value model requires 
an investment property to be measured at fair value with fair value changes recognized directly 
in the statements of income. Cost model requires that an investment property should be 
measured at depreciated cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The Company opted to 
adopt the cost method in accounting for its investment property. 

The effect of adopting the cost method in accounting for real and other properties owned or 
acquired (ROPOA) and investments in real estate that qualified as investment property 
resulted in a decrease in net income of P880,053 in 2004. 

• PFRS 1, First-Time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, requires an entity 
to comply with PFRS effective at the reporting date for its first PFRS financial statements. In 
particular, PFRS 1 requires an entity to do the following in the opening PFRS balance sheet 
that it prepares as a starting point for its accounting under PFRS: (a) recognize all assets and 
liabilities whose recognition is required by PFRS; (b) not recognize items as assets and 
liabilities if PFRS do not permit such recognition; (c) reclassify items that it recognized under 
previous generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as one type of asset, liability or 
component of equity, but are a different type of asset, liability or component of equity under 
PFRS; and (d) apply PFRS in measuring all recognized assets and liabilities. New disclosure 
requirements were included as a result of the adoption of the new standard. 

The Company's transition date is January 1, 2004. The Company prepared its opening PFRS 
balance sheet at that date. The Company's PFRS adoption date is January 1, 2005. In 
preparing financial statements in compliance with PFRS 1, the Company has applied certain 
mandatory exemption and certain optional exemption from full retrospective application of 
PFRS. 

Exemption from restatement of comparative financial information for PAS 32 and PAS 39. 
The Company elected to apply this exemption. It applied previous GAAP rules to derivatives, 
financial assets and financial liabilities and to hedging relationships for the comparative 
information for 2004 and prior years. The adjustments required for differences between the 
previous GAAP and PAS 32 and PAS 39 were determined and recognized at January 1, 2005. 

Exemption in respect of derecognition offinancial assets and liabilities 
Financial assets and liabilities derecognized before January 1, 2004 are not re-recognized 
under PFRS. The application of the exemption from restating comparatives for PAS 32 and 
PAS 39 means that the Group recognized from January 1, 2005 any financial assets and 
financial liabilities derecognized since January 1, 2004 that does not meet the PAS 39 
derecognition criteria. 
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• PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations, specifies the 
accounting for assets held for sale and the presentation and disclosure of discontinued 
operations. It requires assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be 
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and the depreciation 
on such assets to cease. Furthermore, assets that meet the criteria to be classified as 
held-for-sale should be presented separately on the face of the balance sheets and the results of 
discontinued operations to be presented separately in the statements of income. The effect of 
adopting this standard is not material to the Company's financial statements. 

The following revised standards were also adopted in 2005 but had no material impact on the 
Company's financial statements. Required disclosures were included in the financial 
statements where applicable. 

• PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, provides a framework within which an entity 
assesses how to present fairly the effects of transactions and other events; provides the base 
criteria for classifying liabilities as current or non-current; prohibits the presentation of income 
from operating activities and extraordinary items as separate line items in the statements of 
income; and specifies the disclosures about key sources of estimation uncertainty and 
judgments management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting 
policies. It also requires changes in the presentation of minority interest in the balance sheets 
and statements of income. 

• PAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, removes the 
concept of fundamental error and the allowed alternative to retrospective application of 
voluntary changes in accounting policies and retrospective restatement to correct prior period 
errors. It defines material omission or misstatements, and describes how to apply the concept 
of materiality when applying accounting policies and correcting errors. 

• PAS 10, Events After the Balance Sheet Date, provides a limited clarification of the 
accounting for dividends declared after the balance sheet date. 

• PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, provides additional guidance and clarification on 
recognition and measurement of items of property, plant and equipment. It also provides that 
each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation 
to the total cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. 

• PAS 17, Leases, provides a limited revision to clarify the classification of a lease of land and 
buildings and prohibits expensing of initial direct costs in the financial statements of lessors. 

• PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, provides additional guidance and clarity in the scope of 
the standard, the definitions and the disclosures for related parties. It also requires disclosure 
of the compensation of key management personnel by benefit type. 
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Reconciliation of financial position following the adoption of PFRS follows: 

Account Description 	 Item 

January 1, 2005 

(date of transition of PAS 32 and 39) 

December 31, 2004 

(end of last period presented 

under the previous GAAP) 

January 1, 2004 

(date of transition) 
Effect of 

	

Previous 	Transition to 

	

GAAP 	PFRS 	PFRS 

Effect of 

	

Previous 	Transition to 

	

GAAP 	PFRS 	PFRS 
Previous 

GAAP 

Effect of 
Transition to 

PFRS 	PFRS 
Asset Accounts 
Cash and cash equivalents P5,240,774 P5,240,774 P5,240,774 P— P5,240,774 P4,563,771 P— P4,563,771 
Loans and receivables 88,310,243 88,310,243 88,310,243 88,310,243 66,468,472 — 66,468,472 

Property and equipment 2,683,665 2,683,665 2,683,665 — 2,683,665 502,500 502,500 

Real and other properties 

owned or acquired - net 	 a 25,193,361 (25,193,361) 18,340,430 (18,340,430) 

Investment properties - net 	 a 25,526,072 (250,000) 25,276,072 25,526,072 25,526,072 20,176,476 20,176,476 

Other assets - net 	 b 15,251,904 150,000 15,401,904 15,251,904 — 15,251,904 21,911,851 — 21,911,851 

137,012,658 (100,000) 136,912,658 136,679,947 332,711 137,012,658 111,787,024 1,836,046 113,623,070 

Liability Accounts 
Short-term notes payable 13,500,000 13,500,000 13,500,000 13,500,000 3,028,704 3,028,704 

Accounts payable and other liabilitiesc 7,239,039 7,239,039 8,404,564 (1,165,525) 7,239,039 6,231,890 (1,164,430) 5,067,460 

20,739,039 20,739,039 21,904,564 (1,165,525) 20,739,039 9,260,594 (1,164,430) 8,096,164 

Equity Accounts 
Capital stock 76,733,409 76,733,409 76,733,409 76,733,409 74,818,068 — 74,818,068 

Additional paid-in capital 4,347,611 4,347,611 4,347,611 4,347,611 4,347,611 — 4,347,611 

Retained earnings 	 d 35,192,599 35,192,599 33,694,363 1,498,236 35,192,599 23,360,751 3,000,476 26,361,227 

Net unrealized losses on AFS 

investments 	 b (100,000) (100,000) 

116,273,619 (100,000) 116,173,619 114,775,383 1,498,236 116,273,619 102,526,430 3,000,476 105,526,906 

P137,012,658 (P100,000) P136,912,658 P136,679,947 P332,711 P137,012,658 P111,787,024 P1,836,046 P113,623,070 
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Reconciliation of results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 follows: 

Account Description 

Interest Income 
Interest Expense  
Net Interest Income 
Provision for Impairment Losses 
Net Interest Income after Provision for Impairment Losses 
Other Income 
Recovery on asset charged off 
Service charges 
Gain on sale of acquired assets 
Miscellaneous 

Other Expenses 
Professional fees 
Salaries and employee's benefits 
Taxes and licenses 
Management fees 
Litigation/asset acquired expenses 
Transportation and travel 
Rent 
Amortization of deferred charges 
Commissions 
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 
Depreciation and amortization 
Miscellaneous 

Income before Income Tax 
Provision for Income Tax 
Net Income 

Effect of 

	

Previous 	Transition 
Note 	GAAP 	to PFRS 	PFRS 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2004  

	

P36,400,318 	P— P36,400,318 

	

150,625 	 150,625 

	

36,249,693 	— 36,249,693 
e 	787,921 	623,282 	1,411,203 

	

35,461,772 	(623,282) 34,838,490 

4,000,000 
1,489,283 

45,360 
666,189  

6,200,832 

	

5,969,463 
	

5,969,463 
g 	4,455,875 
	

248,922 
	

4,704,797 

	

2,313,704 
	

2,313,704 

	

1,296,047 
	

1,296,047 

	

1,170,464 
	

1,170,464 

	

625,352 
	

625,352 

	

452,545 
	

452,545 

	

420,930 
	

420,930 

	

410,944 
	

410,944 

	

322,888 
	

322,888 
h 	293,036 
	

880,053 
	

1,173,089 

	

2,693,518 
	

2,693,518 
20,424,766 1,128,975  21,553,741 
20,987,821 (1,502,240) 19,485,581 

	

6,823,012 
	

6,823,012 
P14,164,809 (P1,502,240) P12,662,569 

4,000,000 
1,489,283 

45,360 
f 	416,172 

5,950,815 

 

250,017 
250,017 

 

Notes to the reconciliation of balance sheet as of December 31, 2004 and January 01, 2004 and 
statements of income for December 31, 2004: 

a. The net adjustment to Investment Properties consists of: 

	

January 1, 	December 31, 	January 1, 

	

2005 
	

2004 	 2004 

Reclassification from real and other properties 
owned or acquired 

Reclassifications of ROPOA to AFS 
Depreciation of properties treated as 

investment properties under PAS 40 
Reversal of allowance on investment 

properties 
Recognition of additional allowance for 

impairment 
Adjustment of the property to its fair value 

P— 	P25,193,361 	P18,340,430 
(250,000) 

(880,053) 

	

1,887,075 
	

1,887,075 

(623,282) 

	

(51,029) 	(51,029) 
(P250,000) 	P25,526,072 	P20,176,476 

b. The adjustment on Other Assets pertains to reclassification of shares of stocks from ROPOA 
to Available-for-Sale Investments. 
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c. The adjustment to Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities consists of: 

December 31, 
2004 

January 1, 
2004 

Reversal of beginning LRI/MRI payable to income (P1,333,239) (P1,083,222) 
Additional retirement expense under PAS 19 248,922 
Recognition of transition liability (81,208) (81,208) 

(P1,165,525) (P1,164,4301 

d. Following is the summary of the adjustments to Retained Earnings: 

December 31, 
2004 

January 1, 
2004 

Reversal of beginning LRI/MRI payable to income 
(item b) P1,333,239 P1,083,222 

Reversal of allowance on investment property (item a) 4,861,917 5,485,199 
Recognition of accumulated depreciation on 

Investment property (4,478,177) (3,598,124) 
Additional retirement expense (item f) (248,922) 
Recognition of transition liability (item b) 81,208 81,208 
Others (item a) (51,029) (51,029) 

P1,498,236 P3,000,476 

e. The adjustment to Provision for Impairment Losses consists of recognition of additional 
impairment losses for investment property amounting to P623,282 as of December 31, 2004. 

f. The adjustment to Miscellaneous Income amounting to P250,017 consists of recognition of 
the LRI/MRI payable as income as of December 31, 2004 in connection with the provision of 
PAS 18. 

g. The adjustment on Salaries and Employee's Benefits pertains to the recognition of retirement 
expense amounting to P248,922. 

h. The adjustment to Depreciation and Amortization pertains to the recognition of the 2004 
depreciation expense on investment properties. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with maturities of three months or less from the dates of placement that are 
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

Loans and Receivables  
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 
are not quoted in an active market and for which the Company has no intention of trading. 

Loans and receivables are stated at the outstanding balance, reduced by unearned discounts and 
capitalized interest on restructured loans and allowance for impairment losses. 
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Receivables are classified as nonperforming or considered impaired when the principal is past 
due, or when, in the opinion of management, collection of interest and principal is doubtful. 
These receivables will not be reclassified as performing until interest and principal payments are 
brought current or the receivables are restructured and future payments appear assured. 
Receivables are considered past due when three installment payments are in arrears. 

Client's equity represents the amount withheld by the Company as protection against customer 
returns and allowances and other special adjustments, which is equivalent to 30% of the 
receivables factored. This is diminished proportionately as the receivables from factoring are 
collected. 

Investments in Subsidiaries 
Investments in subsidiaries in the Company financial statements are accounted for using the cost 
method less any impairment in value. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria 
must also be met before revenue is recognized: 

Interest Income 
Unearned interest income are recognized as income over the terms of the receivable using the EIR. 
Interest income on nondiscounted receivables is accrued as earned likewise using the effective 
interest method. 

Service Charges 
Service charges are recognized only upon collection or accrued where there is reasonable certainty 
as to its collectibility. 

Investment Properties  
Initially, investment properties are measured at cost including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its 
disposal. Any gains or losses on the derecognition of an investment property are recognized in the 
statements of income in the year of derecognition. 

Expenditures incurred after the investment properties have been put into operations, such as 
repairs and maintenance costs, are normally charged against current operations in the period in 
which the costs are incurred. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 15 years from 
the time of acquisition of the investment property. 

Investment properties are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when the 
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its 
disposal. Any gains or losses on the derecognition of an investment property are recognized in 
the statements of income in the year of derecognition. 
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Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any 
impairment in value. 

The initial cost of property and equipment consists of its purchase price, and any directly 
attributable costs to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. 
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as 
repairs and maintenance, are normally charged against operations in the year in which the costs are 
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in 
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of 
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the 
expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property and equipment. When assets are 
retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation and 
amortization are removed from the accounts any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged 
against current operations. 

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
	

5 years 
Leasehold rights and improvements 

	
10 years or over the period of 
tenancy, whichever is shorter 

Transportation equipment 
	

5 years 

The useful life and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the period and 
the method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with the expected pattern of economic 
benefits from items of property and equipment. 

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such 
indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the 
assets are written down to their recoverable amount (see accounting policy on Impairment of 
Assets). 

Software Costs  
Software costs (included under Other Assets in the balance sheets) include costs incurred relative 
to the development of the Company's software. Costs are amortized over five years on a straight-
line basis from the date of its actual use. 

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation  
Foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using the Philippine Dealing 
System weighted average rate (PDSWAR) prevailing at balance sheet date, while foreign 
currency income and expenses are translated into their equivalent Philippine pesos based on 
PDSWAR at transaction dates. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign currency 
transactions and restatements of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are credited to 
or charged against current operations. 
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Impairment of Financial Assets  
An assessment is made at each balance sheet date as to whether there is objective evidence that a 
specific financial asset may be impaired. If such evidence exists, any impairment loss is 
recognized in the income statement. 

For assets carried at amortized cost such as loans and receivables, impairment is based on 
estimated cash flows or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent, 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. 

The impairment losses for financial assets is inherently subjective because it requires material 
estimates, including the amounts and timing of expected recoverable future cash flows. These 
estimates may change significantly from time to time, depending on available information. In 
addition, a provision is made to cover impairment for specific groups of assets where there is a 
measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows. Increases to the allowance for impairment 
losses are charged to provision for impairment losses in the statement of income. Loans deemed 
to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for impairment losses. Recoveries of 
previously charged off amounts are credited to recoveries from impairment losses in the 
statements of income. 

Interest income is recognized on impaired financial assets based on the rate used to discount future 
cash flows to their net present value. 

Impairment of Non Financial Assets  
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that its non financial 
assets may be impaired. 

Where an indicator of impairment exists, the Company makes a formal estimate of recoverable 
amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's or cash generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is 
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets 

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed by a credit to current operations to the extent 
that it does not restate the asset to a carrying amount in excess of what would have been 
determined (net of any accumulated depreciation and amortization) had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the asset in prior years. 

Income Taxes  
Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary 
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred 
income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused 
tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over the regular corporate 
income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary differences 
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and carryforward of unused tax credits from excess MCIT over RCIT and unused tax losses can be 
utilized. Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized when it arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss. 

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are applicable to the 
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 

Leases  
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statements of income on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. 

Derecognition of Financial Instruments  
The derecognition of a financial instrument takes place when the Company has either 
(a) transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership or (b) when it has neither 
transferred or retained substantially all the risks and rewards but it no longer has control over the 
asset or a proportion of the asset. 

Offsetting 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the 
statement of condition when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts 
and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and the liability 
simultaneously. 

Provisions and Contingencies 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
where, as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined 
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market 
assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized 
as interest expense. 

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the 
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets 
are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits 
is probable. 
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Retirement Cost  
The Company's retirement cost is determined using the projected unit credit method. Under this 
method, the current service cost is the present value of retirement benefits payable in the future 
with respect to services rendered in the current period. The past service cost is the present value 
of any units of future benefits credited to the employees for services in periods prior to the 
commencement or subsequent amendment of the plan. Unfunded past service costs and 
experience adjustment are amortized over the expected remaining working lives of employees. 
Retirement expense includes current service cost plus amortization of past service cost, experience 
adjustments and actuarial gains or losses. 

Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed based on the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding after giving retroactive effect to stock dividends declared and stock rights 
exercised during the year. 

Subsequent Events 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company's position at the 
balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the Company's financial statements. Post 
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements 
when material. 

3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates 

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and contingent liabilities. Future events may occur 
which will cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any 
change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably 
determinable. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. 

The following are the critical judgments and key assumptions that have a significant risk of 
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year: 

a) Impairment losses of receivables 
The Company reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least at each reporting date. 
In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of income, the 
Company makes judgments as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans before the 
decrease can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include 
observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of 
borrowers in a group, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on 
assets in the group. As of December 31, 2005, the carrying value of loans and receivables 
amounted to P128.7 million (Note 6). 
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(b) Recognition of deferred tax asset 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred income taxes at each balance sheet 
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probably that sufficient income will be 
available to all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized. The Company has been 
in a taxable income position over the past several years. As of December 31, 2005, deferred 
tax assets amounted to P6.1 million (Note 14). 

(c) Present value of retirement obligation 
The determination of the obligation and cost of pension and other retirement benefits is 
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such 
amounts. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected returns on plan 
assets and salary increase rates. As of December 31, 2005, the carrying value of the 
Company's net retirement liability amounted to P301,867 (Note 15). 

4. Fair Value Measurement 

The following table summarized the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and 

e) 	
liabilities not presented on the balance sheet at their fair value. 

Carrying Value Fair Value 
Financial Asset 
Receivables 128,725,748 128,725,748 

Financial Liabilities 
Notes payable 37,308,333 37,308,333 
Accrued expenses 4,130,588 4,130,588 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 3,940,001 3,940,001 

Receivables 
The carrying amounts of receivables approximate fair values due to their short-term maturity. 

Financial liabilities 
The carrying amounts of financial liabilities approximate fair values due to their short-term 
maturity. 

5. Financial Instruments Risk Position 

Credit Risk and Concentration of Assets and Liabilities and Off Balance Sheet Items 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation 
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company manages credit risk by setting 
limits for individual borrowers, and groups of borrowers and industry segments. The Company 
also monitors credit exposures, and continually assesses the credit worthiness of counterparties. In 
addition, the Company obtains security where appropriate, enters into collateral arrangements with 
counterparties, and limits the duration of exposures. Finally, credit applications go through a 
process of screening using the Company's credit standards to minimize risk. 
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Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk of loss to future earnings, to fair values or to future cash flows that may 
result from changes in the price of a financial instrument. The value of the financial instruments 
held by the Company may change only as a result of changes in foreign currency exchanges rates, 
extra ordinary changes in interest rates and other fortuitous events. The Company's market risk 
originates from its holdings in its foreign exchange instruments and equities. 

The Company has diversified its loan products to spread both credit risk and market risk. From 
having only one product line in year 2000, the Company now has three strong main product lines 
and continues to develop other loan packages to create better value added services and discover 
new market niches. 

6. Receivables 

Receivables consist of: 

2005 2004 
Loans receivable P187,453,333 P148,759,553 
Due from affiliates (Note 16) 16,602,499 16,847,270 
Notes receivable 3,877,469 
Others 14,987,510 7,933,557 

222,920,811 173,540,380 
Unearned interest income (26,002,407) (34,250,851) 
Client's equity (30,662,716) (13,948,415) 
Allowance for impairment losses (Note 10) (37,529,940) (37,030,871) 

P128,725,748 P88,310,243 

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, nonperforming receivables amounted to P39.2 million and 
P38.7 million, respectively. 

Receivables maturing within one year from the respective balance sheet dates amounted to 
P187.7 million and P132.4 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
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7. Investment Properties 

The composition and movements in this account follow: 

2004 
Land Improvements 	Others 	Total 	Total 

Cost 
Balance at beginning of year 	P16,207,138 	P14,415,644 	P250,000 	P30,872,782 	P34,400,819 
Disposals/others 	 (340,873) 	 (250,000) (590,873)) (3,528,037) 
Balance at end of year 	 15,866,265 	14,415,644 	 30,281,909 	30,872,782 
Accumulated depreciation 

and amortization 
Balance at beginning of year 	 4,478,177 	 4,478,177 	3,598,124 
Depreciation and amortization 	 900,609 	 900,609 	880,053 
Disposals/others  
Balance at end of year 	 5,378,786 	 5,378,786 	4,478,177 
Allowance for impairment losses 

(Note 10) 	 — 	1,614,911 	 — 	1,614,911 	868,533 
Net book value at end of year 	P15,866,265 	P7,421,947 	 P— 	P23,288,212 	P25,526,072 

The aggregate fair value of the investment properties of the Company were P26.53 million and 
P27.38 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

The fair values of the Company's investment properties were obtained on the basis of recent sales 
of similar properties in the same areas as the investment properties and taking into account the 
economic conditions prevailing at the time the valuations were made. 

8. Property and Equipment 

The movements of property and equipment during the year follow: 

2005 

2004 
Total 

Furniture, 
Fixtures and 	Leasehold Transportation 

Equipment Improvements 	Equipment Total 
Cost 

Balance at beginning of year P2,403,191 P1,010,809 P3,009,320 P 6,423,320 P4,328,118 
Additions 19,698 5,676,900 5,696,598 2,474,201 
Disposal (931,722) (878,831) (377,098) (2,187,651) (378,999) 
Balance at end of year 1,491,167 131,978 8,309,122 9,932,267 6,423,320 
Accumulated Depreciation 

and Amortization 
Balance at beginning of year 2,173,760 977,344 588,551 3,739,655 3,825,618 
Depreciation and amortization 103,902 14,829 1,449,212 1,567,943 293,036 
Disposal (931,722) (878,831) (365,431) (2,175,984) (378,999) 
Balance at end of year 1,345,940 113,342 1,672,332 3,131,614 3,739,655 
Net Book Value P145,227 P18,636 P6,636,790 P6,800,653 P2,683,665 
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9. Other Assets 

This account consists of: 

2005 2004 
Prepaid expenses P1,524,123 P395,909 
Software costs 365,875 713,020 
AFS investments 180,000 — 
Investments in subsidiaries 100,000 100,000 
Sales contract receivable — 987,243 
Miscellaneous 851,576 249,832 

P3,021,574 P2,446,004 

AFS securities pertains to golf club shares reclassified form ROPOA and is net of unrealized 
market loss of P70,000 in 2005 and P100,000 in 2004. 

The movements in software costs follow: 

2005 2004 
Balance at beginning of year P713,020 P1,100,950 
Additions 73,785 33,000 
Amortization for the year (420,930) (420,930) 
Net book value at end of year P365,875 P713,020 

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, the investments in subsidiaries pertain to investments in 
shares of stock of the following: 

Acquisition costs: 
Commercial and Consumer Credit Corporation (3C) 

(100% owned) 	 P1,000,000 
Global Credit and Management Group/3C (GCMGI/3C) 

(51% owned) 	 1,000,000 
3C - Pawnshop (100% owned) 	 100,000  

2,100,000 
Accumulated equity in net losses 	 (2,000,000) 

P100,000 

The Company discontinued applying the equity method for its investments in 3C and GCMGI/3C 
since the acquisition costs were reduced to zero due to the accumulated share in net losses of these 
subsidiaries. 3C and GCMGI/3C have ceased operations in 1999 and 1996, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2005, 3C Pawnshop has not yet started commercial operations. 
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10. Allowance for Impairment Losses 

Changes in the allowance for impairment losses are as follows: 

2005 2004 

Balance at beginning of year 
Receivables P37,030,871 P54,554,306 
Investment properties 868,533 4,685,208 
AFS investments 3,227,008 

41,126,412 59,239,514 
Provisions 1,168,642 1,411,203 
Accounts written off (19,524,305) 
Recovery 76,805 
Balance at end of year 

Receivables (Note 3) 37,529,940 37,030,871 
Investment properties 1,614,911 868,533 
AFS investments 3,227,008 3,227,008 

P42,371,859 P41,126,412 

The Company's receivables were individually assessed as to impairment and those uncollected for 
90 days or more were provided with 100% allowance. 

11. Notes Payable 

This represents unsecured short-term loans from a domestic bank and from stockholders with 
annual interest rates ranging from 10% to 12.5% in 2005 and 9% to 15% in 2004. 

Notes payable maturing within one year from the respective balance sheet dates amounted to 
P37,308,333 and P13,500,000 as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. 

12. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities 

This account consists of: 

2005 2004 
Accounts payable P3,383,506 P1,547,981 
Others 556,495 956,256 

P3,940,001 P2,504,237 
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13. Stockholder's Equity 

On May 25, 2004, the BOD approved the declaration of 2.56% stock dividends in the aggregate 
amount of P1,915,598 in favor of the stockholders of record as of June 25, 2004, with any 
fractional shares to be paid in cash. This stock dividend declaration was approved by the 
Company's stockholders in a meeting held on June 10, 2004. 

Also on May 25, 2004, the BOD declared cash dividends amounting to 81,915,599 or P0.0256 per 
share. 

The movements in the number of shares and capital stock amount for the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 follow: 

2005 2004 
Number 

of Shares Amount* 
Number 

of Shares Amount* 
Balance at beginning of year 
Increase in the number of 

shares as a result of 
reduction in par value 

Stock dividends 
Issuance 

76,733,409 

2,124,709 

876,733,409 

2,124,709 

74,818,068 

1,915,341 

874,818,068 

1,915,341 

Balance at end of year 78,858,118 P78,858,118 76,733,409 P76,733,409 
*P1 par value per share 

14. Income and Other Taxes 

The components of the deferred tax assets included under Other Assets account are as follows: 

2005 2004 
Deferred tax assets on: 

Allowance for impairment losses P6,092,585 P12,664,268 
Nondeductible expense 99,783 
Past service cost 41,849 

P6,092,585 P12,805,900 

The Company did not set up deferred tax assets on the allowance for impairment losses amounting 
to P6.6 million and P3.1 million as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company 
believes that it is not reasonably probable that this temporary difference will be realized in the 
future. 
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The reconciliation of the statutory income tax to the effective income tax follows: 

2005 2004 
Statutory income tax P6,621,414 P6,716,103 
Tax effects of: 

Nondeductible expenses 500,751 164,385 
Tax-paid and tax-exempt income (125,739) (89,990) 
Others 1,183,252 32,514 

Effective income tax P8,179,678 P6,823,012 

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company is subject to the value-added tax (VAT) instead of the 
gross receipts tax (GRT). However, GRT on banks and financial intermediaries was reimposed 
effective January 1, 2004. 

RA No. 9337, An Act Amending National Internal Revenue Code, provides that the RCIT rate 
shall be increased from 32% to 35% effective July 1, 2005 until December 31, 2008. Starting 
January 1, 2009 the RCIT rate shall be 30%. It also provides for the change in GRT rate from 5% 
to 7% on non-lending income. However, these amendments were the subject of a temporary 
restraining order (TRO) by the Supreme Court (SC). On October 8, 2005, the SC ruled that RA 
9337 is constitutional and lifted the TRO. Subsequently, RA No. 9337 took effect on November 1, 
2005. With the effectivity of RA No. 9337 on November 1, 2005, the RCIT rate is 35%. Interest 
allowed as a deductible expense is reduced by an amount equivalent to 42% of interest income 
subjected to final tax. 

An MCIT of 2% on gross income is computed and compared with the regular income tax. Any 
excess of the MCIT over the regular income tax is deferred and can be used as a tax credit against 
future income tax liability for the next three years from the year of inception. In addition, the 
NOLCO is allowed as a deduction from taxable income for the next three years from the year of 
inception. 

15. Retirement Plan 

The Company has a noncontributory and funded retirement plan covering all its officers and 
regular employees. The valuation used in determining retirement cost is the projected unit credit 
method. 

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement liability for the Bank's 
retirement plan are shown below: 

2005 2004 
Discount rate 12% 14% 
Expected rate of return on assets 7% 7% 
Future salary increases 10% 10% 
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The amounts recognized in the balance sheets are as follow: 

2005 2004 
Present value of fund obligation P759,546 P533,591 
Fair value of plan assets (389,313) (361,585) 
Unrecognized actuarial gains/(losses) (68,366) 
Net pension liability P301,867 P172,006 

The movements in the present value of obligation follow: 

2005 2004 
Balance, January 1 P533,591 P406,929 
Retirement expense 225,955 126,662 
Balance, December 31 P759,546 P533,591 

The movements in the fair value of plan assets recognized follow: 

2005 2004 
Balance, January 1 P361,585 P337,930 
Expected return 25,311 23,655 
Actuarial gains/losses 2,417 
Balance, December 31 P389,313 P361,585 

Actual return on plan assets amounted to P27,728 and P23,655 as of December 31, 2005 and 
2004, respectively. 

The amounts included in Salaries and Wages in the statements of income are as follows: 

2005 2004 
Current cost P91,141 P69,692 
Interest cost 64,031 56,970 
Expected return on plan assets (25,311) (23,655) 

P129,861 P103,007 
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16. Related Party Transactions 

The following transactions have been entered into with related parties: 

Elements of Transactions 

Nature of Related 	Nature of 	Balance Sheet Amount 	Statement of Income Amount  

Related party 	 Party Relationship 	Transaction 	 2005 	2004 	2005 	2004  

AIB 	 Stockholder 	Receivables 	 P— 	P96,960 	 P— 	 P-- 

Payables 	 — 	9,000,000 	 — 

Car lease contract 	4,314,425 	 364,670 	 — 

Interest expense 	 — 	 719,859 	28,000 

Professional fees 	 4,360,000 	4,000,000 

Interest Income 	 177,148 	 — 

Merg Realty and Development 
Corporation 	 Stockholder 	Receivables 	 — 	2,401 

Payables 	 3,345,710 	6,401 	 — 	 — 

Rental 	 — 	 — 	456,000 	452,545 

Interest expense 	 43,778 	9,619 

Transportation/ 

Borromeo Bros. Estate 	Stockholder 	others 	 87,901 	127,753 

3C 	 Subsidiary 	Receivables 	 11,802,608 	 — 	 — 

Payment of 

Subsidiary 	 advances 	11,739,608 

3C Pawnshop 	 Subsidiary 	Receivables 	 — 	67,014 

Advanced 
Subsidiary 	 expenses 	 67,014 	 — 

GCMGI/3C 	 Subsidiary 	Receivables 	 — 	4,486,780 
Payment of 

Subsidiary 	 Advances 	4,486,780 	 — 

MF Insurance Services 	Subsidiary 	Receivables 	 — 	80,702 

Advanced 

Subsidiary 	 expenses 	 80,702 	 — 

Honda Motor World 	Affiliates 	Professional Fee 	 — 	 500,000 

Others 	 Stockholders 	Receivables 	 310,805 	 — 

Affiliates 	Professional Fee 	 — 	700,000 	 — 

Directors 	Professional fees 	 — 	 — 	1,200,000 

Directors 	Management fees 	1,639,572 	 2,306,902 	1,296,647 

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management consist of short-term 
benefits amounting to P4.9 million in 2005 and P3.9 million in 2004. 

17. Earnings Per Share 

EPS amounts were calculated as follows: 

	

2005 	 2004 
a. Net income 	 P12,193,904 	P12,662,569 
b. Weighted average number of outstanding 

common shares 	 78,858,118 	76,733,409 
c. Basic earnings per share (a/b) 	 P0.15 	 P0.17 
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Stock dividends declared in 2005 of 1,915,341 shares have been retroactively effected in the 2004 
and 2003 basic EPS. 

As of December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, there were no shares of stock that have a dilutive effect 
on the earnings per share of the Company. 

18. Contingent Liability 

In 2003, the Company received a preliminary assessment notice from the BIR for various tax 
liabilities covering the taxable year 1999 amounting to P5,326,644. In 2004, the Company entered 
into a compromise settlement with the BIR for the settlement of this assessment at P721,700. Of 
this amount, P394,879 were paid representing basic deficiency tax and compromise penalty. The 
balance represented interest. 

19. Lease Commitment 

The Company leases its office space under a lease contract expiring on September 30, 2006. Total 
rent expense incurred in 2005 and 2004 amounted to P499,315 and P452,545, respectively. The 
rental to be paid in 2006 under the agreement amounts to P342,000. The lease contract is 
renewable annually upon agreement of the lessor and the Company. 
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